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Cynon Taf Community Housing (2007) Limited
Strategic Report
The Board present their strategic report on the affairs of the Group, together with the
financial statements and auditors' report, for the year ended 31 March 2020.

Introduction
The Group welcomed its new Chief Executive Vic Slade into post in June 2019.
Changes have been made to the way we do things and towards the end of the year
had some significant challenges to address, first with severe floods across South
Wales which affected our communities, and then the Coronavirus pandemic and
lockdown. Our vision and values held true through those challenges and will
continue to guide our decision making.
A key focus for us throughout the year has been ‘Protecting our Financial
Sustainability’. We want to do more to improve our ability to respond to future
challenges and priorities which include improving the quality of our homes,
decarbonisation, tackling homelessness, and meeting housing need with new
homes.

Our Vision, Values and Priorities
Cynon Taf Community Housing Group is at the heart of Rhondda Cynon Taf in
South Wales. We’re proud of our deep-rooted history in providing housing and
support for the people and communities where we work.

Our Vision
We want to be part of happy, healthy and prosperous valley communities where
everyone has a chance to live well.

Our Purpose
We’re here to provide great homes and support for the people who make up our
communities.

Our Values

Respect

Integrity

We treat everyone with
respect

We carry out our roles with
honesty and sincerity

Responsibility

Excellence

We take responsibility for our
actions

We always do our very best

Passion
We care
passionately about
what we do
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Supporting Resilient Communities
Housing & Communities Overview April 2019 - March 2020
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Making Strides Walking Group
The Making Strides Walking Group met weekly at
Aberdare Park, and was introduced to increase
opportunities for tenants to connect as well as
improve health and wellbeing. 8 people
participated over 17 sessions, and two of the
regular attendees achieved Walk Leader
accreditation through the Group – so they can
take this forward in their communities.

Hardship Fund
We used this fund to help 56 tenants during the year. This meant we could take a
little bit of pressure off people who just needed a bit of help to get on their feet.
Assistance ranged from help with reconnecting utilities to support with groceries.
The amounts aren’t excessive but make a difference. We spent £4,491.

Environmental Impact
We have started to think about and act on our impact on the environment. During
the year we:
•

Participated in Plastic Free July supported by a lunchtime learning session on
climate change and carbon reduction

•

Switched our organisation to using glass instead of plastic bottles and made the
swap to eco-friendly cleaning products – as well as making personal pledges for
what we could do differently at home

•

Signed up to the Carbon Literacy Project in Wales so that we can learn how to
green our organisation and prepare for decarbonisation of existing and new
homes

FUTURE FOCUS
•
•
•
•

Strengthen affordable rent policy, taking account of service charges and local
needs
Energy efficiency project in Penrhiwceiber
Action plan to reduce our carbon footprint
Carbon Literacy Training for key employees and create a Board member
champion
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Delivering Excellent Services
Letting our existing Homes
The average length
of time it takes to
repair and let an
empty home –
27.7 days

The average length of
time it takes to repair
and let an empty
sheltered scheme
home –
16.24 days

Tenants satisfied with
their home when they
moved in
75 %

Dealing with anti-social behaviour
In 2019/20
ASB satisfaction
surveys: 43 (51%) out
of 83 people, agreed to
take part.

93% reported their
case initially by
phone and found the
process easy and
fair.

100% were satisfied
with the response
time to the initial
complaint.

Tenants receiving
Universal Credit
have arrears totalling
£216,951

Current tenant rent
arrears are at 3.19%
as at 31st March 2020

Universal Credit & Rent
376 tenants
are currently receiving
Universal Credit

Communications

1150 Facebook
fans

434 Instagram followers

4185 Twitter followers
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Maintaining Our Homes
We spent £1.3M on Planned Investment works completed during 2019/20. We
completed…

13
new
roofs

11

57

windows
replaced

172

51

boilers
refurbished

bathrooms
refurbished

kitchens
refurbished

Keeping our tenants safe in their homes
properties hold a current gas landlord certificate
properties have a current electrical
safety test certificate
properties electrical smoke detectors
were checked

100%

schemes and communal area
have a up to date fire risk
assessment

aids and adaptation equipment installed in our homes were safety checked and serviced

Repairs
98.29%
8.04 days
90.5%
249
3729
69.24%

appointments made were kept
average number of days to complete responsive repairs
tenants satisfied with the repairs completed
out of hours emergency repairs call outs were responded to
day to day repairs completed
average standard assessment procedure (SAP) ratings increased
from 67.9%, following investment to improve energy efficiency in our
homes
During the year we have also completed independent reviews of landlord health and
safety, service charges, and tenant engagement.

FUTURE FOCUS
•
•
•
•
•

Ask tenants what their priorities are
Grow our in-house repairs and maintenance service
Reduce the time it takes to let empty homes
Improve online services for tenants
Maintain focus on WHQS and improve the energy efficiency of our homes
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Growing our supply of homes

Homes
completed and handed
over in 2019/20 = 19

Homes
planned for completion
and handover in
2020/21 = 32

Developments
commenced 2019/20
Oxford Buildings – provision of 8
learning disability flats
Tonypandy – provision of 20 social
homes and 1 adapted bungalow
Developments due on site 2020/21
Well Place – provision of purposebuilt adapted bungalow
Abergorki – general needs and
supported housing for
mental health

Pen Llew Court
January 2020 saw the completion of the refurbishment at Penllew Court, providing
19 learning disability flats. This scheme was delivered in partnership with Rhondda
Cynon Taf County Borough Council and the support provider Drive.
“The 24/7 onsite care and support is invaluable
allowing individuals to live an independent life
behind their own front door while remaining safe
and secure. Through innovative designs and the
use of smart technology we are able to cater for a
wide range of learning disabilities.
The development of Pen Llew is an important
step in providing choice and independence for
the residents of RCT with a learning disability”
Alex Bridgeman, RCT Council

FUTURE FOCUS
•
•
•
•
•

Compete Oxford Buildings learning disability scheme in Mountain Ash
Complete Cwrt Y Gamlas and Margaret Street to provide 23 new homes for rent
Complete work on the Tonypandy School site to provide 21 new homes for rent
Review different delivery options for building new homes and adopt the most
efficient option
Develop a fully costed medium-term plan for building new homes
9
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Protecting our financial sustainability
The Association was awarded a Standard Regulatory Assessment from Welsh
Government for both governance and financial viability in June 2019.
We remain committed to charging a Living Rent and paying a Living Wage, and so
have focused on putting the building blocks in place to strengthen our financial
capacity whilst improving the quality of homes and services.
There are a number of key challenges ahead – decarbonising homes, developing
new homes, tackling homelessness - and so increasing financial capacity is really
important to us.
During the year we have:
•

moved our outsourced IT service back in-house, which will generate cost savings
as well as improve our capacity

•

developed a new procurement strategy and forward plan to maximise community
benefits and value

•

achieved our commitment of last year to move to a single, good quality pension
scheme which mitigates future deficit liabilities.

These were significant pieces of work which help increase our financial capacity to
meet the challenges ahead. In addition, we have also:
•

strengthened our approach to financial stress testing and implemented our
Financial Mitigation Strategy, which as a result we have standardised covenants
and created additional headroom.

•

involved tenants and employees for the first time in Siambr Seren, an inclusive
zero-based budgeting approach which makes sure that spend is directed
towards priorities, and that savings made through the process are re-directed
towards achieving our aims

•

strengthened our cashflow reporting

Despite more tenants moving onto Universal Credit in the year, we have maintained
rent collection levels with focused support for tenants who needed some help. But
we know that a third of our tenants experienced difficulty in paying at least one
household bill in the year, so some of the budget savings we identified in 2019/20
will be used to absorb previously grant-funded posts which provide advice and
support to tenants if and as they need it.
We were also able to apply our financial mitigation strategy and stress testing model
to the just-approved business plan and budgets as part of our business continuity
response to the Covid-19 pandemic.
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Our Treasury Management Strategy is reviewed annually by the Audit and
Performance Committee along with the 30 year financial business plan which is
approved by Board and submitted to Welsh Government.
Our loan portfolio, which is spread across several lenders, funds our ongoing
development programme. We aim to achieve a fixed interest rate for 75% of our
loans to mitigate the risk of interest rate rises. We have improved our ratio of fixed/
variable loans.
Fixed/Variable Interest Ratio
% Fixed Rate
% Variable Rate

2018/19
33%
67%

2019/20
61%
39%

We have continued to meet all of our financial and non-financial loan lender
covenants and Board covenant tolerance levels.

Rents & Services
Amortisation of grants
Care & Repair
PAG Grants
Other Income
Pension Grant Adjustment

8,974
822
1,574
224
130
2,365
14,062

Management & Services
Repairs
Care & Repair
Other Costs
Mortgage Interest
Depreciation & Impairment of
Housing Properties
Asset Disposals

2,156
3,170
1,470
551
1,067
2,052
24
10,490

FUTURE FOCUS
•
•
•
•

Implement our Value for Money plan
Develop a medium term corporate and financial plan
Implement our forward plan for procurement
Review our funding requirements for future growth and investment
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Investing in our governance, our people and our systems
Our commitment to equality and diversity
Diversity is everybody’s responsibility. We value and promote equality and diversity at all
levels throughout the organisation. There’s a strong and proven business case for creating
diverse organisations.

Formed our
Equality &
Diversity
group

QED
accreditation

Pension
Review

Staff forum reviewed
and influenced 29
employment
policies, reviewed its
terms of reference

Reduced our
environmental impact
by switching to glass
milk bottles and
eco-friendly cleaning
products

Domestic Abuse policy
widened to include
support for colleagues,
including 20 days paid
leave for those affected
by domestic abuse

Provided
Welsh
Language
lessons for
staff

Provided career
development for two
members of staff by
working in close
partnership with our
subsidiary, Cwm Taf
Care & Repair

Charity
Group

Celebrated
Plastic Free July,
Black History
Month &
Pride

Invested in our staff by
providing training across the
group in Equality & Diversity,
Data Protection, and Mental
Health. All our managers are
now i-act for positive mental
health and WELLbeing
managers.
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Governance
The Welsh Government published our regulatory assessment in June 2019. The
Association was awarded Standard, the highest category, for both governance and
financial viability.
We have invested in Board training and skills development in the following areas:
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Financial mitigation and stress testing
Equality and Diversity
Equality impact assessments
Unconscious Bias in recruitment
New build and development
Risk management
Whistleblowing
Pensions
GDPR

Board members have also been active supporters and participants in our learning
sessions on climate change, Welsh language, Black History Month and Pride.
We have also worked with Board to develop and implement:
•
•
•

Revised risk management framework which looks at wider sector risks
Board Assurance Framework using the ‘three lines of defence’ model
Governance Action Plan following an internal review of governance which
incorporated the Regulatory Framework for Housing Associations, the Right
Stuff and CHC’s Code of Governance. Resulting in strengthened Board skills
in a number of areas, particularly in scrutiny of Equality & Diversity issues.
The Board have strengthened their relationship through team building
sessions, resulting in improved decision making, and also moved towards a
more generative approach to governance. We reviewed our board
recruitment practice and successfully recruited a new Tenant Board Member,
bringing greater diversity to the make-up of the Board.
Tenant Scrutiny and Engagement
We worked with the Tenant Scrutiny Group to improve
our Complaints process following a robust review and
reflections on lessons learned.
We reviewed our Tenant Engagement Structures in
conjunction with an independent consultant and the
Tenant’s Forum and have agreed an action plan which
will strengthen Tenant engagement particularly in
decision making and improve challenge and scrutiny.
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People
During the year we brought different
colleagues together to form our Equality and
Diversity Group, who supported us to achieve
the Tai Pawb Equality and Diversity
Accreditation.
As a result of that journey we have:
• Worked with tenants, employees, and
Board to design, finalise and implement
our Equality and Diversity Strategy and
Action Plan
•

Implemented our framework for Equality Impact Assessments and applied it
to new or refreshed policies, including an independent Equality Impact
Assessment of proposed pensions arrangements

•

Engaged all our employees and Board members in refreshed Equality and
Diversity training and completed unconscious bias training for employees,
tenants and Board members involved in recruitment panels

•

Strengthened our Domestic Abuse Policy to include 20 days paid leave for
any of our employees who are affected by domestic abuse

•

Focused on mental health and wellbeing by engaging all colleagues in
focused training, with all managers now i-act positive for mental health
accredited

•

Participated in months which celebrated Black History and Pride and began
our journey to better understand lived experiences so we can be better allies

•

Promoted the Welsh Language through lunchtime learning sessions for
employees – and dusted off our Cymraeg

Our Staff Forum has been really active in the year. They have…
•

Reviewed our lone worker system

•

Helped to strengthen our policies for Domestic Abuse, Family Leave and
Flexible Working

•

Increased our recycling rate by installing office collection points to recycle
confectionery wrappers, aluminium and recyclable plastics in addition to
paper and printer cartridges
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Systems
We recognised that we needed greater control over our ICT systems in order to
improve the quality of service to employees and tenants. We have:
•

Brought our ICT systems back in-house from a managed external service,
upgraded them and moved to a cloud-based system. This was a significant
project which meant we had to build our own capacity from scratch as well as
invest in the kit and licenses we needed.

The timing of the ICT project couldn’t have been better as it enabled us to shift all
teams to remote working as the pandemic picked up pace and lockdown started.
We have also:
•
•
•

Engaged with all employees, and Board members, to complete GDPR and Cyber
Security training
Extended the use of Rentsense and Virtual Boardroom
Completed an independent review of our Business Continuity arrangements

FUTURE FOCUS
•
•
•
•
•

Make savings by bringing ICT back in-house
Employee Assistance Programme
Business Continuity and disaster recovery
Independent Governance Review
Work together to develop a new competency framework based on values.
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Partnering with others to achieve shared goals
We know that working with others to achieve better outcomes is better for everyone.
We have…
•

The majority of our contractors are based in Wales and employ local people and
source their materials from local suppliers. We maximised the Welsh pound with
a total Repairs and Maintenance spend of c.£3.44m, of which £3,24m is awarded
to contractors with offices in Wales.

•

The contract at Penllew generated a community sum of £4,339.

•

We worked with GreenStream flooring, a local social enterprise, to provide good
quality recycled flooring to households in need. We provided vouchers to 16
tenants, supporting them to carpet their homes, a total value of £935.

•

Benefited from our partnership with Cwm Taf Care and Repair to offer two
employees career development opportunities

•

Made numerous personal contributions to the Merthyr and Cynon FoodBank, as
well as a donation of £5,000 following the severe flooding that affected our
communities.

•

Local Authority – supported the Council’s Independent Living Strategy by
partnering with them and Drive to hand over 19 Learning Disability homes at Pen
Llew Court.

FUTURE FOCUS
•
•
•
•
•

Actively look for opportunities to share the purchase of services with others
Implement the Tenant Involvement Review
Explore opportunity for co-operative housing
Establish links with local social enterprises for shared initiatives
Work with Cwm Taf Care and Repair to see how we can better support them
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Charity
Each year we vote for a charity we want to support, and during 2019-20 our charity
was Wales Air Ambulance. The total funds raised, including a donation from the
Board of Management, was £5,231.99.
The money was raised through various activities over the 12 months such as our
sweet treat tuck shop, a Christmas Wreath competition, weight loss and exercise
challenge, Christmas Jumper Day, Rugby Sweepstake plus much more.

The Charity Group said;
“We would like to extend a big thank
you for everyone’s support,
donations and participation. We
love to receive new ideas and support
from all to ensure we can raise as
much money as possible for every
one of the chosen charities.”
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Cwm Taf Care & Repair
Care & Repair is the older persons champion in Wales and actively works to ensure
that all older people have homes that are safe, secure and appropriate to their
needs.
Cwm Taf Care & Repair is a not for profit organisation that is a wholly owned
subsidiary of the Cynon Taf Community Housing Group. The agency is funded by
Welsh Government, Rhondda Cynon Taf County Borough Council, Merthyr Tydfil
County Borough Council, Cwm Taf University Health Board and Cynon Taf
Community Housing Group.
The role of Cwm Taf Care & Repair is to provide a free support and advice service
for older and disabled people that assists the clients choice to remain living in their
home. A client led, individually tailored package of support will be identified and
delivered by an experienced team of Case Officers and Technical Officers with the
aim of ensuring clients remain in their own homes with greater independence,
warmth, security and safety.

Delivering Excellent Services

Supported
4707
clients

6339 jobs
to ensure clients can
remain living at
home independently

1140 customer
satisfaction forms

461
of these clients
were aged 90
plus

90%
improved
their Quality
Of Life

99% satisfied
with services
received

Average
age of
client 77

Our officers
visited 2958
clients in their
homes to
provide support

Over 1 Million
pounds worth of work
competed across
Cwm Taf =
£1,115,872

98%
recommends
services to
others
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Keeping people safe in their own homes
We installed…

51 Level
access
Showers

Made 1604
homes safe
& secure

4620
Rails

942
Key
Safes

Managing Better Service
Our Managing Better Service has just completed its 4th year of service and due to
its success has received continued funding from Welsh Government for a further 3
years.
•

In 2019-2020 we supported 259 clients with Sensory loss, visual impairment or
hearing loss

•

We completed 438 jobs for clients delivering a tailored package amounting to a
value of £102,646

COVID Response
As a result of Covid impacting directly on our ability to manage services, the agency
very quickly reshaped its services to support clients and partners. During such
unforeseen circumstances it is incredible how Staff, Contractors, Board Members
and partners all adapted quickly to change to ensure our clients are supported.
We also redeployed staff to assist Cwm Taf Morgannwg Health Board in ensuring
facilities were able to be brought back in to use to allow clients to be moved into
safely allowing both Prince Charles Hospital & Royal Glamorgan Hospital to be used
for Covid patients.
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Governance and Management of Risk
Risk is now considered at every Board meeting following the introduction of a new,
wider approach which looks at sector risks, focusing on areas where risk appetite is
not reducing, or where new risks or appetite needs to be considered. Board has also
delegated detailed scrutiny of identified key risks to Audit and Performance
Committee – on a ‘call in’ basis.
Although our risk map now looks at a larger number of sector risks, we use the ‘six
ways to sink a ship’ model to describe and think about the potential impacts or
outcomes from our more detailed risks not being managed.
Major business
interruption
Major fall in
income

Regulatory or
performance noncompliance

Loss of life / Health &
Safety breach

Cash
crisis

Major increase in
expenditure

The new risk approach adopted provides a set of key strategic and operational risks
which threaten the delivery of our corporate objectives.
Strategic risk/s

Why?

Impact?

Welfare Benefit Reform

Tenants ability to pay rent Reduction in income,
and other charges is
increase in operating
reduced
costs

Cyberattack

Website and systems are
vulnerable to phishing,
denial of service, data
theft and fraud

Unplanned expenditure,
business interruption

Data security

GDPR breach and fine

Unplanned expenditure,
reputational damage

Pensions

SHPS deficit and future
liabilities

Cash crisis

Development

Poor development
decisions and overcommitment or failure to
deliver as planned

Cash crisis, reputational
damage
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Differential inflation rates

Operating costs are rising Cash crisis
faster than income

Health and Safety

Legislative breach, injury
or loss of life

Unplanned expenditure,
reputational damage

WHQS compliance

Poor quality data
underpinning investment
decisions, programme
does not achieve or
sustain compliance

Unplanned expenditure,
regulatory intervention,
reputational damage

Brexit

Interruptions to supplies
of fuel and components,
increases on rates of
borrowing, reduced
access to borrowing,
pressures on tenant’s
income, community
tensions

Business interruption,
reduction in income,
increased costs

Decarbonisation

Significant additional
investment required

Unplanned expenditure

Community decline is relevant as a risk although we acknowledge that we may have
limited ability to mitigate this. We are also picking up more on counter party risk
particularly in relation to the new specialist scheme arrangements we are entering
into with our delivery partners. We have also seen the additional risk of the
Coronavirus pandemic arise which has since been added to our risk register and an
update on the how the Group responded to it are detailed in the paragraphs below.
Sector risk/s
Community decline
Counter-party risk

Covid

Why?
Economic decline of areas
in which we operate
Failure of key partners or
providers e.g. main
contractors or lessees of
buildings we own but they
manage
Pandemic

Impact?
Increase in voids, bad
debt, arrears
Business interruption,
cash crisis

Business interruption,
increase in bad debt,
arrears and costs,
unplanned expenditure,
cash crisis
21

Cynon Taf Community Housing (2007) Limited
Strategic Report
COVID-19 Pandemic – Business continuity response
The COVID-19 outbreak was and remains an unprecedented risk in terms of likelihood
and impact. It spread worldwide in a matter of weeks, presenting clear risks to the
health and wellbeing of employees and tenants, as well as our organisation, in the
context of the economy.
Our priority as the risk profile of the virus grew, and mitigating actions by the UK and
Welsh Government were announced, was to scale back front-line services to
essential only and redeploy employees to other areas of work. For the Care and
Repair Agency, it was re-shaping services to support the health service and the
local authority. We worked alongside partners on the local Resilience Forum, led by
Rhondda Cynon Taf CBC.
In early March our Incident Management Team was convened to initiate and deliver
our Coronavirus Business Continuity Plan. Its focus was to take action to protect
employees and tenants, whilst maintaining key services, such as landlord health and
safety, and starting early and regular conversations with our funders. We worked with
a sub-group of our Board to make sure that governance arrangements would continue
to work well throughout the pandemic and lockdown, with weekly scrutiny of
operational performance measures for safety and income, to act as an early warning
system. A set of temporary policies were approved early on for governance and
service arrangements during the pandemic.
Before the end of March we had:
Refocused day to day service delivery - hygiene and distancing measures for
employees and contractors, and screening calls for all tenant and client contact.
Removed group meetings and events from diaries; appointed a Monitoring Officer to
keep us up to date with Public Health information and guidance and to advise the
Incident Management Team; and started active health surveillance for employees,
contractors and tenants to help inform our decision making.
Remote Working – Switched to remote working to avoid unnecessary travel and
contact between people in the office. Prioritised employees with underlying health
conditions, and 100 per cent remote working achieved by 24 March.
Frontline services - Quickly reviewed and reshaped with maintenance switching to
emergency and safety repairs plus maintenance of compliance systems and
servicing. Determined that these were priority areas and communicated changes to
tenants and employees. Housing Management services switched to remote
provision, with some teams re-deployed to proactive wellbeing contact and income
management assistance. Communal areas in schemes were closed, and cleaning
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services focused on areas where distancing measures could be observed. This was
all in place by the time we closed the office and before the lockdown arrangements
were announced. Care and Repair had also implemented their business continuity
plans and re-shaped services to meet the needs of the health service, and the local
authority.
Contractors - We kept in regular touch with all our contractors about their capacity
regarding safe working and staffing levels. This included development contractors. It
became apparent that after the lockdown arrangements were announced that
material suppliers had problems with sourcing which reinforced the business need
to focus on essential services. We re-negotiated resumption of key services, for
example, in relation to servicing, with our contractors.
Financial Risk - Our financial risk mitigation strategy helped to inform our business
continuity arrangements in rephasing budgets as well as the stress testing scenarios
and mitigations for Covid-19 which were presented to Board in April 2020. The
stress testing has used assumptions that were agreed through an informal meeting
of Chairs and Audit and Performance Members on 7 April 2020.
Governance - we needed to work in a flexible, fast-paced way both operationally
and in governance terms – the speed or timing of decisions needed to match the
situation, but the quality remaining robust. A discussion at Governance Committee
on 19 March 2020 focused on the need for good governance during this period,
combined with support to enable the business to respond in an agile way.
Several temporary polices and processes to address this were approved by Board:
•
•
•
•
•
•

repairs, maintenance and investment policy
rent arrears and evictions policy
contingency measure for Company Secretary Role
use of Urgency and Efficiency and electronic authorisations
revise timelines for retendering of services for Internal Audit, External Audit, and
Insurance services
principles of the furlough scheme

Due to the actions taken the board believe there to be sufficient controls in place to
ensure the ongoing risk will not impact the going concern of the association within
the next 12 months.
Regulation - Having suspended routine regulatory engagement, the regulator is
focusing on two key areas: safety of tenants and financial viability and sustainability
of associations. The Business Continuity plan implemented during this time should
give assurance that robust plans are in place.
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Governance
The Association aims to achieve high standards of governance and has adopted the
Community Housing Cymru Code of Governance. The Board is supported by two
committees – the Audit and Performance Committee and the Governance Committee.
All members of these Committees are drawn from the non-executive board members
of Cynon Taf.

Our Board

Ms J Kent
Chair
Date:

Ms A M Williams
Secretary
4th August 2020
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The Board of Management present the financial statements for the year ended 31 st
March 2020.
FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE 2020
The financial result for 2020 was a surplus for the year of £3.572m as compared to a
loss of £1.814m in 2019. The primary reason for the significant movement year on
year is the actuarial losses and gains for the defined benefit pension scheme. These
are analysed further in Note 24.
REVIEW OF THE OPERATIONS
The principal activity of the Association continues to be that of developing and
managing good quality rented accommodation within Rhondda Cynon Taf.
Cwm Taf Care and Repair Limited continues to help older and disabled people in
Rhondda Cynon Taf to improve or maintain a suitable home environment by enabling
repairs, improvements and adaptations to be carried out.
For further information, please refer to the Strategic Report on pages 4 to 24.
GOING CONCERN
The Group has considerable financial resources and, as a consequence, the Board
believe that the Group is well placed to manage its business risks, including Covid19, successfully despite current uncertainties in the social housing sector.
BOARD OF MANAGEMENT AND SENIOR EXECUTIVES
The Board of Management and Senior Executives who served during the year are
listed on page 3.
The Senior Executives of the Association hold no interest in the Association’s share
capital. The Senior Executives, although they do not have the legal status of directors,
act as executives within the authority delegated by Board.
EMPLOYEES
The Association's intention is to be a fair employer offering staff training openings and
career advancement against a continuing commitment to equal opportunities in
respect of employment and access to services.
DONATIONS
Donations amounted to £6,000 (2019 - £6,000). There were no political donations.
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INSURANCE EFFECTED FOR OFFICERS AND BOARD
The Association has maintained professional indemnity insurance for the officers and
Board during the year.
ANNUAL MEETING
The annual meeting of the association will be held online at 5.30pm on 15th September
2020.
STATEMENT OF BOARD MEMBERS RESPONSIBILITIES
The Board is responsible for preparing the Annual Report and the financial statements
in accordance with applicable law and regulations.
The Co-operative and Community Benefit Societies Act 2014 and Registered Social
Landlord legislation requires the Board to prepare financial statements for each
financial year. Under that legislation the Board has elected to prepare the financial
statements in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting
Practice. Under Housing Association legislation the Board must not approve the
financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair view of the
state of affairs of the Group and the Association and of the surplus or deficit of the
Group and Association for that period. In preparing these financial statements, the
Board is required to:
•
•
•
•

select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;
make judgments and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent;
state whether applicable UK Accounting Standards have been followed, subject to
any material departures disclosed and explained in the financial statements; and
prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is
inappropriate to presume that the Group and Association will continue in business.

The Board are responsible for maintaining satisfactory systems of internal control and
keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain the
Group and Association’s transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any
time the financial position of the Group and Association, and enable them to ensure
that the financial statements comply with Housing Association legislation .They are
also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Group and Association and hence
for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other
irregularities.
The Directors are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the corporate and
financial information on the Association’s website.
Each of the Board members at the date of approval of this report has confirmed that:
•

As far as the Board members are aware, there is no relevant audit information of
which the Group’s auditors is unaware; and
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•

The Board members have taken all the steps that they ought to have taken as
Board members, in order to make themselves aware of any relevant audit
information and to establish that the Group’s auditor is aware of the information.

INTERNAL CONTROL STATEMENT
The Board is committed to achieving high standards of corporate governance and
acknowledges its responsibility for ensuring that the Association and the Group have
in place a system of internal controls that are appropriate to the various business
environments in which we operate. These controls are designed to give reasonable
assurance with respect to:
•
•
•

Reliability of financial information
Administration and maintenance of proper accounting records; and
Safeguarding of unauthorised use of assets.

It is the Board’s responsibility to establish and maintain systems of internal financial
control, providing reasonable assurance against material financial misstatement or
loss. Key controls include:
•
•
•
•

•

•
•

Clearly defined management and reporting structures.
Formal policies and procedures including the Schedule of Delegated Authority,
Financial Control Regulations and Anti-Fraud Policy.
Effective recruitment and training programmes
Audit and Performance Committee structure that has delegated power to scrutinise
budget setting, quarterly management information and financial forecasting,
examining any significant variances prior to findings and making relevant
recommendations to Board. This allows Board to monitor the key business risks
and objectives and assess delivery against the financial plan set for the year.
Risk Management Framework with regular review of the risk register. Risk has
been set as a standard agenda item at both Board and Audit and Performance
Committee. The Clearview performance management system is being used to
record and monitor risk.
Good working relationships with Welsh Government, Rhondda Cynon Taf County
Borough Council and Cwm Taf Health Board.
Internal Audit and External Audit, with all reports being reviewed at Audit and
Performance Committee prior to Board.

The Board has reviewed the effectiveness of the Groups internal control for the year
ended 31st March 2020.
By order of the Board of Management

Ms J Kent

Date: 4th August 2020

Chair
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Co-Operative and Community Benefit Societies Act 2014
Opinion
We have audited the financial statements of Cynon Taf Community Housing (2007)
Limited (“the Association”) for the year ended 31 March 2020 which comprise the
consolidated and Association statements of comprehensive income, consolidated and
Associated statements of changes in reserves, the consolidated and Association
statements of financial position, the consolidated cash flow statement and its related
notes. The financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is
applicable law and United Kingdom Accounting Standards (United Kingdom Generally
Accepted Accounting Practice), including FRS 102 “The Financial Reporting Standard
applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland”.
In our opinion the financial statements:
•
•
•

give a true and fair view of the state of the Group’s and Association's affairs as
at 31st March 2020 and of its income and expenditure for the year then ended;
have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally
Accepted Accounting Practice;
have been properly prepared in accordance with the Co-operative and
Community Benefit Societies Act 2014, the Housing and Regeneration Act 2008
and the Accounting Requirements for Registered Social Landlords General
Determination (Wales) 2015.

Basis for Opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK)
(ISAs (UK)) and applicable law. Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements section
of our report. We are independent of the Association in accordance with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the UK,
including the FRC’s Ethical Standard, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion.
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Conclusions relating to going concern
We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the
ISAs (UK) require us to report to you where:
•

the Boards’ use of the going concern basis of accounting in the preparation of
the financial statements is not appropriate; or

•

the Board have not disclosed in the financial statements any identified material
uncertainties that may cast significant doubt about the Group and Association’s
ability to continue to adopt the going concern basis of accounting for a period of
at least twelve months from the date when the financial statements are
authorised for issue.

Other Information
The other information comprises the information included in the annual report, other
than the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon. The Board are
responsible for the other information. Our opinion on the financial statements does not
cover the other information and, except to the extent otherwise explicitly stated in our
report, we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. In connection with
our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to
be materially misstated. If we identify such material inconsistencies or apparent material
misstatements, we are required to determine whether there is a material misstatement
in the financial statements or a material misstatement of the other information. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of
this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in
this regard.
Matters on which we are required to report by exception
We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters where the Co-operative
and Community Benefit Societies Act 2014 require us to report to you if, in our opinion:
•

a satisfactory system of control over transactions has not been maintained; or

•

the Group and Association has not kept proper accounting records; or

•

the financial statements are not in agreement with the books of account of the
Group and Association; or

•

we have not received all the information and explanations we need for our audit.
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Responsibilities of the board
As explained more fully in the Statement of Responsibilities of the Board (set out on
page 26), the Board is responsible for the preparation of the financial statements and
for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for such internal control as the
Board determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
In preparing the financial statements, the Board are responsible for assessing the Group
and Association’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting
unless the Board either intend to liquidate the group or to cease operations, or have no
realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance
is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with ISAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.
A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is
located on the Financial Reporting Council’s website at:
https://www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities This description forms part of our
auditor’s report.
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Note

2020
£

2019
£

Turnover

3

11,696,542

11,549,752

Operating expenditure
Gain/(loss) on disposal of housing properties

3
4

(9,398,701)
(23,985)

(9,661,505)
-

Operating surplus
Pension deficit re-measurements
Interest receivable
Interest and financing costs
Financing costs – pension deficit

7
23
6
5
23

2,273,856
226
(1,066,663)
(127)

1,888,247
1,289
(1,119,690)
(206)

1,207,292

769,640

24

-

(1,742,063)

24

2,365,000

(842,000)

3,572,292

(1,814,423)

Surplus for the year
Other comprehensive income
Initial recognition of multi-employer defined benefit
scheme
Actuarial gains/ (loss) in respect of pension schemes
Total comprehensive income/(loss) for the year

The results relate wholly to continuing activities and there are no recognised gains or losses for the period
other than the profit and loss.

Association Statement of Comprehensive Income
For the year ended 31 March 2020
Note

2020
£

2019
£

Turnover

3

10,190,444

10,158,111

Operating expenditure
Gain/(loss) on disposal of housing properties

3
4

(7,946,049)
(23,985)

(8,341,390)

Operating surplus
Pension deficit remeasurements
Interest receivable
Interest and financing costs
Financing costs – pension deficit

7
23
6
5
23

Surplus for the year
Other comprehensive income
Initial recognition of multi-employer defined benefit
scheme
Actuarial gain/(loss) in respect of pension schemes
Total comprehensive income/(loss) for the year

2,220,410
226
(1,066,663)
(127)

1,816,721
1,289
(1,119,690)
(206)

1,153,846

698,114

24

-

(1,453,415)

24

2,096,000

(760,000)

3,249,846

(1,515,301)

The results relate wholly to continuing activities and there are no recognised gains or losses for the period
other than the profit and loss.
The notes on pages 40 to 86 form part of these financial statements.
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Note

2020
£

2019
£

Intangible fixed assets

9

92,487

76,413

Tangible fixed assets
Housing properties
Other tangible fixed assets

10
11

99,356,822
1,856,877

96,822,077
1,594,329

Fixed asset investments
Homebuy loans receivable

12

404,720

432,720

101,710,906

98,925,539

13
14
15

43,166
1,002,870
183,118
1,926,164
3,155,318

39,668
1,275,655
53,983
1,996,365
3,365,671

17
21

(5,303,864)
(790,236)

(11,058,518)
(831,287)

(2,938,782)

(8,524,134)

656,327

-

99,428,451

90,401,405

(27,579,881)
(1,869,360)
(47,974,092)

(20,606,894)
(4,442,355)
(46,919,321)

22,005,118

18,432,835

139
22,004,979

148
18,432,687

22,005,118

18,432,835

Total fixed assets
Current assets
Stock
Debtors
Properties held for sale
Cash

Creditors: Amounts falling due within one year
Social housing & other government grants: Amounts
falling due within one year
Net current liabilities
Debtors: Amounts falling due after more than one year

16

Total assets less current liabilities
Creditors: Amounts falling due after more than one year
Pension – Defined Benefit liability
Social Housing and other government grants: amounts
falling due after more than one year

18
24
21

Net assets

Capital and reserves
Called-up share capital
Reserves

25
26

Total reserves

The financial statements of Cynon Taf Community Housing (2007) Limited were approved by the Board 4th
August 2020 signed on its behalf by:

Ms J Kent
Chair

Ms A Williams
Secretary

Mr A Rawlins
Board Member
34

Cynon Taf Community Housing (2007) Limited
Association Statement of Financial Position
At 31 March 2020
Note
Intangible fixed assets

9

2020
£
92,487

Tangible fixed assets
Housing properties
Other tangible fixed assets

10
11

99,356,822
1,570,669

96,822,077
1,312,252

12

404,720
1

432,720
1

101,424,699

98,643,463

13
14
15

6,371
1,026,904
183,118
1,262,625
2,479,018

7,200
1,261,095
53,983
1,329,961
2,652,239

17
21

(5,183,408)
(790,236)

(10,874,411)
(831,287)

(3,494,626)

(9,053,459)

656,327

-

98,586,400

89,590,004

(27,562,751)
(1,621,000)
(47,974,092)

(20,598,963)
(3,893,000)
(46,919,321)

21,428,557

18,178,720

139
21,428,418

148
18,178,572

21,428,557

18,178,720

Fixed asset investments
Homebuy loans receivable
Other investments
Total fixed assets
Current assets
Stock
Debtors
Properties held for sale
Cash

Creditors: Amounts falling due within one year
Social housing & other government grants: Amounts
falling due within one year
Net current liabilities
Debtors: Amounts falling due after more than one year

16

Total assets less current liabilities
Creditors: Amounts falling due after more than one year
Pension – Defined Benefit liability
Social Housing and other government grants: Amounts
falling due after more than one year

18
24
21

Net assets

Capital and reserves
Called-up share capital
Reserves

25
26

Total reserves

2019
£
76,413

The financial statements of Cynon Taf Community Housing (2007) Limited were approved by the Board on
4th August 2020 and signed on its behalf by:

Ms J Kent
Chair

Ms A Williams
Secretary

Mr A Rawlins
Board Member
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At 1 April 2019

Revenue
reserve
£
18,389,054

Restricted
reserve
£
43,633

Total
£
18,432,687

Transfer to revenue reserve
Transfer from restricted reserve
Surplus for the year
At 31 March 2020

852
3,572,292
21,962,198

(852)
42,781

(852)
852
3,572,292
22,004,979
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Reserves
£
At 1 April 2019

18,178,572

Surplus for the year

3,249,846

At 31 March 2020

21,428,418
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2020
2,273,856

Group
2019
1,888,247

2020
2,220,410

Association
2019
1,816,721

2,173,807
(822,391)
(10)
184,519
16,439
686,000

2,486,905
(905,125)
212,398
7
-

2,156,632
(822,391)
(10)
171,519
16,439
686,000

2,463,427
(905,125)
200,398
7
-

(3,498)
(383,542)
(156,648)
28,508
(394,193)
3,602,847
(1,186,343)

(10,416)
(250,194)
47,329
2,947
(309,700)
3,162,398
(1,235,243)

829
(422,136)
(97,616)
23,929
(349,198)
3,584,407
(1,186,343)

(202)
(281,679)
(1,321)
4,305
(277,055)
3,019,476
(1,235,243)

(1,296,048)
(417,359)
703,097

(1,507,382)
(148,416)
271,357

(1,296,048)
(396,054)
705,962

(1,507,382)
(145,680)
131,171

(7,491,583)
(6,788,486)

(1,150,765)
(879,408)

(7,491,583)
(6,785,621)

(1,150,765)
(1,019,594)

(3,717,083)
191,339

(3,093,373)
19,226

(3,717,083)
191,339

(3,093,373)
19,226

1,696,028
28,000

1,115,338
(521,140)

1,696,028
28,000

1,115,338
(521,140)

Cashflow from financing activities
Drawdown of new loan facility
Share capital allotted
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents

8,520,000
1
(70,201)

3,700,000
4
340,647

8,520,000
1
(67,336)

3,700,000
4
200,461

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year

1,996,365

1,655,718

1,329,961

1,129,500

Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year

1,926,164

1,996,365

1,262,625

1,329,961

Operating surplus
Adjustments for non cash items
Depreciation of fixed assets
Government grants amortised in year
Amounts written off share capital
Pension DB Accounting adjustments
Loss on disposal of fixed asset
HFG Grant creditor
Working capital movements
(Increase)/decrease in stock
Decrease/(Increase) in trade and other debtors
(Decrease)/increase in creditors
Increase in provisions
Pension deficit contributions paid
Net cash generated from operating activities
Interest received
Interest and mortgage fees paid
Adjustments for reinvestment in existing
properties
Component replacements
Purchase of other fixed assets
Free cash generated/(expended) before loan
repayments
Loans repaid (excluding revolving credit facilities)
Free cash expended after loan repayments
Cash flow from investing activities
Purchase and development of properties
Proceeds from sales of properties and other fixed
assets
Grants received
Grants repaid/recycled
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Reconciliation of Net
Debt

Cash & cash equivalents
Cash & Cash equivalents

Borrowings
Due within one year
Due after one year

Total

Group
At 31 March 2020

At 1 April 2019

Cashflows

£

£

Other non-cash
changes
£

1,996,365
1,996,365

(70,201)
(70,201)

-

1,926,164
1,926,164

(8,695,224)
(20,789,253)
(29,484,477)

7,491,583
(8,520,000)
(1,028,417)

(1,379,801)
1,379,801
-

(2,583,442)
(27,929,452)
(30,512,894)

(27,488,112)

(1,098,618)

-

(28,586,730)

£

Association

Cash & Cash equivalents
Cash & Cash equivalents

Borrowings
Due within one year
Due after one year

Total

At 1 April
2019
£

Cashflows
£

Other non-cash
changes
£

At 31 March
2020
£

1,329,961
1,329,961

(67,336)
(67,336)

-

1,262,625
1,262,625

(8,695,224)
(20,789,253)
(29,484,477)

7,491,583
(8,520,000)
(1,028,417)

(1,379,801)
1,379,801
-

(2,583,442)
(27,929,452)
(30,512,894)

(28,154,516)

(1,095,753)

-

(29,250,269)
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1.

Legal Status

The Association is registered under the Co-operative and Community Benefit Society
Act 2014 and is a registered provider of social housing.
2.

Accounting policies

The principal accounting policies are summarised below. They have all been applied
consistently throughout the year and to the preceding year.
General information and basis of accounting
The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention in
accordance with Financial Reporting Standard 102 (FRS 102) issued by the Financial
Reporting Council and comply with the Statement of Recommended Practice for
registered social housing providers 2018 (SORP) and the Accounting Requirements
for Registered Social Landlords General Determination (Wales) 2015.
Cynon Taf Community Housing (2007) Limited is a public benefit entity, as defined in
FRS 102 and applies the relevant paragraphs prefixed ‘PBE’ in FRS 102.
Historically, sufficient information was not available for the SHPS Defined Benefit
Scheme participated in by the Association and its Subsidiary to allow defined benefit
accounting to be applied. Instead, in accordance with FRS 102 paragraphs 28.11 and
28.11A, the Association and its Subsidiary accounted for SHPS as a defined
contribution scheme and recognised a liability for the present value of the deficit
funding agreement.
Following a number of changes made to systems and processes by the Scheme’s
Actuary, sufficient information is now available for SHPS. Therefore, in accordance
with paragraphs 28.14 to 28.28 of FRS 102, the scheme is now accounted for as a
Defined benefit scheme.
The financial statements are presented in Sterling (£).
Statement of compliance
The financial statements comply with the Statement of Recommended Practice for
registered social housing providers 2018 (SORP).
Basis of consolidation
The group accounts consolidate the accounts of the association and all its subsidiaries
at 31 March under the requirements of FRS 102. The Association is required under
the Co-operative and Community Benefit Societies Act 2014 to prepare group
accounts. The consolidation has been carried out in accordance with current
accounting standards in order to show the financial information for the group as a
single economic entity. Where any conflict arises between the Housing SORP 2018
and applicable financial reporting standards, then the Housing SORP 2018 prevails.
Details of the subsidiary undertaking are shown in Note 32.
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Going concern
The Group’s business activities, its current financial position and factors likely to affect
its future development are regularly considered by the Board. In light of the
Coronavirus pandemic, the Board specifically revisited the approved budget for
2020/21 and the long-term business plan. Both were revised to mitigate for the
expected impacts of the pandemic. The Association has in place long-term debt
facilities which provide adequate resources to finance committed reinvestment and
development programmes, along with the Association’s day to day operations.
The long-term business plan shows that the Association is able to service its debt
facilities whilst continuing to comply with lenders’ covenants. Whilst the future impact
of Brexit is unknown, the Board do not believe that it poses a going concern risk to the
business.
On this basis, the Board has a reasonable expectation that the Group has adequate
resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future, being a
period of at least twelve months after the date on which the report and financial
statements are signed. For this reason, it continues to adopt the going concern basis
in the financial statements.
Intangible Assets
Intangible assets consist of computer software that is used for administrative and
operating purposes and is stated at historic cost less accumulated amortisation.
Amortisation is provided on intangible assets on a straight line basis over 5 years.
Property, plant and equipment - housing properties
Housing properties are principally properties available for rent and are stated at cost
less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses. The cost of
properties includes the cost of acquiring land and buildings together with incidental
costs of acquisition and directly attributable development costs to the construction of
new housing properties during the development. Capitalisation ceases when
substantially all the activities that are necessary to get the asset ready for use are
complete.
Development administration costs which can be shown to be directly attributable to
the development activity are added to the cost of the housing properties in the
statement of financial position. Where development and administration costs are
incurred internally or in providing services to other organisations which cannot be
recovered they are taken to the statement of comprehensive income.
Freehold land is not depreciated.
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Major components
Major components of housing properties, which have significantly different patterns of
consumption of economic benefits, are treated as separate assets and depreciated
over their expected useful economic lives at the following annual rates:
Structure

150 years

Efficiency improvements

25 years

Roofs

60 years

External works

35 years

Doors and windows

25 years

Electrics

35 years

Kitchens

15 years

Heating systems

20 years

Bathrooms

25 years

Boilers

15 years

Properties held on long leases are depreciated over their estimated useful economic
lives or the lease duration if shorter.
Improvements
Expenditure relating to component replacement is capitalised and depreciated over its
useful economic life rather than charged in full to the Statement of Comprehensive
Income. Any works to housing properties which do not replace a component or result
in an incremental future benefit are charged as expenditure in the Statement of
Comprehensive Income.
Non-housing property, plant and equipment
Freehold land is not depreciated.
Freehold office buildings are depreciated in equal instalments over fifty years.
Computer equipment is written off in equal instalments over four, five or fifteen years.
Office furniture and equipment is depreciated by equal instalments over three to
fifteen years.
Impairment of social housing properties
Properties held for their social benefit are not held solely for the cash inflows they
generate and are held for their service potential.
An assessment is made at each reporting date as to whether an indicator of
impairment exists. If such an indicator exists, an impairment assessment is carried out
and an estimate of the recoverable amount of the asset is made. Where the carrying
amount of the asset exceeds its recoverable amount, an impairment loss is recognised
in the Statement of Comprehensive Income. The recoverable amount of an asset is
the higher of its value in use and fair value less costs to sell.
An impairment loss is reversed if the reasons for the impairment loss have ceased to
apply and included in surplus or deficit in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.
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Social Housing Grant and other Government grants
Where grants are received from government agencies which meet the definition of
government grants they are recognised when there is reasonable assurance that the
conditions attached to them will be complied with and that the grant will be received.
Social Housing Grants (SHG) are capital grants receivable from the Welsh
Government which are repayable in certain circumstances, primarily following sale of
a property (but also demolition or change of use to an ineligible activity) to the extent
that it is not subject to abatement. These grants are designed as a contribution
towards the capital cost of providing new social housing and are received when a
property is developed or acquired. The amount of SHG receivable is calculated on a
fixed basis depending on the size, location and type of housing property.
Grant relating to assets is recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income on
a straight line basis from the date of acquisition. It is allocated first to building structure
(to the value of its cost) and then to its components as follows:
Structure

150 years

Components 31 years (being the weighted average of the components excluding Land and
Structure)

Where individual components are disposed of, any unamortised grant remaining
relating to these assets is not recognised as revenue but continues to be amortised
over the weighted average life of the components and not separately accounted for on
individual components.
All repayable grants amortised through the Statement of Comprehensive Income is
reported as a contingent liability in the financial statements, with the liability
crystallising as and when the grant becomes repayable to the Welsh Government.
Where grants are received in advance, they are carried forward as current liabilities to
be matched against future capital expenditure as it is incurred. Grants repayable are
included within creditors in the statement of financial position.
Government grants are recognised using the accrual model and are classified either
as a grant relating to revenue or a grant relating to assets. Grants relating to revenue
are recognised in income on a systematic basis over the period in which related costs
for which the grant is intended to compensate are recognised.
Grants relating to assets are recognised in income on a systematic basis over the
expected useful life of the asset. Grants received for housing properties are
recognised in income over the expected useful life of the housing property structure.
Where a grant is received specifically for components of a housing property, the grant
is recognised in income over the expected useful life of the component.
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Housing Finance Grant (HFG)
HFG is paid by Welsh Government towards the costs of housing assets over a period
of 30 years to subsidise the capital and interest costs for the provision of affordable
housing. The net present value of the HFG receivable over the agreed payment term
is recognised as a capital grant and a deferred debtor.
Upon receipt of the grant payments, the debtor decreases by the capital element and
the difference between this and the amount of grant received is credited to surplus or
deficit in the Statement of Comprehensive Income as a contribution towards the
financing cost of that scheme.
The capital grant element of HFG previously received is deemed to be repayable upon
disposal of a related housing asset. This is treated as Recycled Capital Grant in the
Recycled Capital Grant Fund and included in the Statement of Financial Position as a
creditor.
Recycling of grants
Where there is a requirement to either repay or recycle a grant received for an asset
that has been disposed of, a provision is included in the Statement of Financial
Position to recognise this obligation as a liability. When approval is received from the
funding body to use the grant for a specific development, the amount previously
recognised as a provision for the recycling of the grant is reclassified as a creditor in
the Statement of Financial Position.
Leased assets
At inception the Group assesses agreements that transfer the right to use assets. The
assessment considers whether the arrangement is, or contains, a lease based on the
substance of the arrangement.
Operating leased assets
Leases that do not transfer all the risks and rewards of ownership are classified as
operating leases. Leasing charges in respect of operating leases are recognised in
the Statement of Comprehensive Income over the period of the lease agreements as
incurred.
Stock
Stock is valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value, using the first in first out
method.
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Interest and Financing costs
Financing costs are interest and other costs incurred in connection with the borrowing
of funds. The capitalisation rate used in an accounting period shall be the weighted
average of rates applicable to the entity’s general borrowings that are outstanding
during the period. Borrowing costs are amortised over the period that the Group
derives benefit from a financial instrument, such as a loan, using the effective interest
rate method.
Home buy option
Where the Group received an allowance from Welsh Government to administer the
sale of property under the “Home Buy Option” initiative and in turn has made an
interest free loan to the purchaser secured by a charge on the property, the loan is
accounted for under investments at cost with the associated grant included in long
term liabilities on the statement of financial position.
Employee benefits
Short term employee benefits and contributions to defined contribution plans are
recognised as an expense in the period in which they incurred.
Termination Payments
Termination benefits are employee benefits payable as a result of either: (a) The
Group’s decision to terminate an employee’s employment before the normal
retirement date; or (b) an employee’s decision to accept voluntary redundancy in
exchange for those benefits.
Termination payments do not provide future economic benefits and are therefore
recognised as an expense in the Statement of Comprehensive Income immediately.
Taxation
The Association and its subsidiary have obtained charitable status under Section 485
(2) Corporation Tax Act 2010 and were therefore exempt from corporation tax on their
primary activities.
Designated Funds
Designated funds are unrestricted funds that have been earmarked for a particular
purpose by the Board. The Group has a number of designated funds including a
designated reserve for the estimated costs that would be incurred if the subsidiary
(Cwm Taf Care and Repair Limited) was wound up in the event of its core funding
being withdrawn and a Furniture replacement reserve to cover the capital cost of
replacement of communal equipment.
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Restricted Reserves
Restricted funds are funds subject to specific restrictions specified by the donor.
Pensions
Multi-employer defined benefit pension scheme – Social Housing Pension Scheme
The Association and its Subsidiary participate in the Social Housing Pension Scheme
(the Scheme), a multi-employer scheme which provides benefits to some 500 nonassociated employers. The Scheme is a defined benefit scheme in the UK. The
Association and its subsidiary have closed this Scheme to new entrants.
The scheme is funded by contributions partly from the employees and partly by the
Group at rates determined by independent actuaries. The scheme assets are invested
separately from the Group’s assets in independently administrated multi-employer
funds.
Triennial valuations by the independent actuaries of the schemes highlight the
estimated pension liability in respect of past service commitments, and the requisite
employer contributions resulting from the projected surplus or deficit. The present
value of these estimated future contributions is recognised as a liability in the
statement of financial position.
The liability recognised in the Statement of Financial Position in respect of the defined
benefit pension plan is the present value of the defined benefit obligation at 31st March
less the fair value of plan assets.
The defined benefit obligation is calculated annually by independent actuaries. The
present value of the defined benefit obligation is determined by discounting the
estimated future cash outflows using interest rates of high-quality corporate bonds that
are denominated in the currency in which the benefits will be paid, and that have terms
approximating to the terms of the related obligation.
The net interest cost is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net balance of
the defined benefit obligation and the fair value of plan assets. This cost is included in
the Statement of Comprehensive Income. Re-measurement gains and losses arising
from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are recognised in
the period in which they occur, directly in other comprehensive income.
Defined contribution scheme
The Association’s subsidiary undertaking participates in a defined contribution scheme
where the amount charged to surplus or deficit in the Statement of Comprehensive
Income in respect of pension costs and other post-retirement benefits is the
contributions payable in the year. Differences between contributions payable in the
year and contributions actually paid are shown as either accruals or prepayments in
the Statement of Financial Position.
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Turnover
Turnover represents rent and service charges receivable (net of rent and service
charge losses from voids) and amortised Social Housing Grant. Revenue grants are
receivable when the conditions for receipt of agreed grant funding have been met.
Charges for support services funded under Supporting People are recognised as they
fall due under the contractual arrangements with Administering Authorities.
Amortisation of Social Housing and other government grants is accounted for in line
with the accounting policy.
Rental income is recognised from the point when properties under development reach
practical completion or otherwise become available for letting.
Surpluses or loss resulting from the sale of properties and fixed asset investments are
shown in the income and expenditure account under surpluses/loss from the sale of
fixed assets. Revenue is recognised when sale completion of the property has been
achieved.
Financial assets
Financial assets are recognised when the Group becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument. They are derecognised when the contractual rights to
the cash flows expire, or when the financial assets and all substantial risks and
rewards are transferred.
Debtors
Short term debtors are measured at transaction price less any impairment. Loans
receivable are measured initially at fair value, net of transaction costs, and are
measured subsequently at amortised cost using the effective interest method less any
impairment. Where deferral of payment terms have been agreed at below market rate
and where material, the balance is shown at the present value, discounted at a market
rate.
At the reporting date, the effect of discounting is not material to the value of financial
assets of the Group, so discounting is omitted.
Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand deposits, together
with other short term, highly liquid investments that are readily convertible into known
amounts of cash and are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

47

Cynon Taf Community Housing (2007) Limited
Notes to the financial statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 March 2020
Financial liabilities
Financial liabilities are recognised when the Group becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument. They are derecognised only when the contractual
obligation is extinguished, that is when the obligation is discharged, cancelled or
expires.
Creditors
Short term creditors are measured at the transaction price. Other financial liabilities
are measured initially at fair value, net of transaction cost, and are measured
subsequently at amortised cost using the effective interest method. Discounting is
omitted where the effect of discounting is immaterial.
Loans
Basic financial instruments are recognised at amortised historical cost. Loan
arrangement fees are capitalised and recognised over the term of the loan through the
effective interest rate applied to the loan (and amendments there to when subsequent
fees arise during the course of such loans). The Interest calculated using the effective
interest rate is recognised as an expense in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.
Provisions for liabilities
Provisions are recognised when the group has a present obligation (legal or
constructive) as a result of a past event. It is probable that the group will be required
to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the
obligation.
Investments in Subsidiary
Investment in the subsidiary is accounted for at cost less any impairment.

Significant management judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty
The preparation of the financial statements requires management to make judgments,
estimates and assumptions that affect the application of policies and reported amounts
of assets and liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience and various other factors that are
believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form the basis
of making the judgments about carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not
readily apparent from other sources. Actual results in the future may differ from these
estimates.
Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions
to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised
and in any future periods affected.
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Significant management judgements
The following are management judgements in applying the accounting policies of the
Group that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial
statements.
Impairment of social housing properties
Management have to make an assessment as to whether an indicator of impairment
exists. In making this judgement, management considered the detailed criteria set out
in the Statement of Recommended Practice for Social Housing Providers (2014).
Specifically this includes whether there is an impairment indicator for a cashgenerating unit. For these purposes, a cash-generating unit is defined as a property
scheme.

Depreciation
Tangible fixed assets, other than investment properties, are depreciated over their
useful economic lives based on various factors. The actual lives of the assets are reassessed on a periodic basis and may vary depending on the standard of the asset.
For housing property assets, the assets are broken down into components based on
management’s assessment of the properties and the specific costs incurred in
replacing these components. Individual economic lives are assigned to these
components. Management have reviewed the components and have concluded that
the asset lives are appropriate.
Provisions and accruals
Management bases its judgements on the circumstances relating to each specific
event and upon currently available information. However, given the inherent
difficulties in the estimation of liabilities in these areas, it cannot be guaranteed that
additional costs will not be incurred beyond the amounts accrued.
Defined Benefit Pension Scheme
The Group has obligations to pay pension benefits to certain employees. The cost of
these benefits and the present value of the obligation depend on a number of factors,
including; life expectancy, salary increases, asset valuations and the discount rate on
corporate bonds. Management estimates these factors in determining the net pension
obligation in the Statement of Financial Position. The assumptions reflect historical
experience and current trends. The significant actuarial assumptions are detailed in
Note 2
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3.

Analysis of turnover and costs
(a) Particulars of turnover, cost of sales operating costs and operating surplus
Group
2020
Turnover

Operating costs

Loss on disposal
of housing
properties

Operating
surplus

£

£

£

£

10,045,141

(7,819,867)

-

-

(23,985)

(23,985)

1,546,746

(1,469,894)

-

76,852

82,091

(81,733)

-

358

RCT Funding

-

-

-

-

Other initiatives

-

(27,207)

-

(27,207)

-

-

22,564

(9,398,701)

(23,985)

2,273,856

Social housing
lettings
Other social housing
activities

2,225,274

Non social housing
activities
Care and Repair
Big Lottery Funding

Other income

22,564
11,696,542

Group
2019

Social housing
lettings
Other social housing
activities

Turnover

Operating costs

Loss on disposal
of housing
properties

Operating
surplus

£

£

£

£

9,857,261

(8,028,239)

-

-

-

-

1,432,301

(1,353,027)

-

79,274

80,764

(82,334)

-

(1,570)

134,155

(161,327)

-

(27,172)

-

(36,578)

-

(36,578)

45,271

-

-

45,271

11,549,752

(9,661,505)

-

1,888,247

1,829,022

Non social housing
activities
Care and Repair
Big Lottery Funding
RCT Funding
Other initiatives
Other income
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3. Analysis of turnover and costs - Continued
(a) Particulars of turnover, cost of sales operating costs and operating surplus
Association
2020
Turnover

Operating costs

Loss on sale of
housing
properties

Operating
surplus

£

£

£

£

10,045,141

(7,827,109)

-

2,218,032

-

-

(23,985)

(23,985)

Care and Repair

40,648

(10,000)

-

30,648

Big Lottery Funding

82,091

(81,733)

-

358

RCT Funding

-

-

-

-

Other initiatives

-

(27,207)

-

(27,207)

22,564

-

-

22,564

10,190,444

(7,946,049)

(23,985)

2,220,410

Social housing lettings
Other social housing
activities
Non social housing
activities

Other income

Association
2019
Turnover

Operating costs

Loss on sale
of housing
properties

Operating
surplus

£

£

£

£

9,857,261

(8,051,151)

-

1,806,110

-

-

-

-

Care and Repair

40,660

(10,000)

-

30,660

Big Lottery Funding

80,764

(82,334)

-

(1,570)

134,155

(161,327)

-

(27,172)

-

(36,578)

-

(36,578)

45,271

-

-

45,271

10,158,111

(8,341,390)

-

1,816,721

Social housing lettings
Other social housing
activities
Non social housing
activities

RCT Funding
Other initiatives
Other income
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A detailed analysis of the social housing turnover and related operating costs is
provided in note 3 (b).

Management costs represent the costs of the Association for running the core
operations of the organisation. Services represent the direct costs of the
Associations Housing Department. Maintenance costs for administering repairs to
properties are split between routine maintenance and major repairs/planned
maintenance.
Other costs include development costs representing those
development overheads which are not directly attributable to bringing fixed assets
into their working condition for their intended purposes. Central overheads are
allocated based upon the utilisation of key personnel within each area.
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(b) Particulars of Income and Expenditure from social housing lettings
Group
2020 Total

Group
2019 Total

£

£

£

8,021,170

390,037

8,411,207

8,136,930

453,393

109,879

563,272

471,900

822,391

-

822,391

905,125

24,765

-

24,765

-

223,506

-

223,506

343,306

9,545,225

499,916

10,045,141

9,857,261

1,508,847

160,849

1,669,696

1,470,511

Service charge costs

486,675

-

486,675

567,653

Routine maintenance

2,985,221

-

2,985,221

2,999,618

184,657

-

184,657

239,514

83,964

-

83,964

45,558

2,051,509

-

2,051,509

2,370,459

358,145

-

358,145

334,926

7,659,018

160,849

7,819,867

8,028,239

1,886,207

339,067

2,225,274

1,829,022

64,470

-

64,470

69,482

Income
Rent receivable
Service charge income
Amortisation of social housing
and other government grants
WG Revenue grant HFG2
PAG grants
Turnover from social housing
lettings
Operating costs
Management costs

Major repairs/planned
maintenance
Bad debts
Depreciation and impairment of
housing properties
Other
Operating costs on social
housing activities
Operating surplus on social
housing lettings

General
needs and
sheltered
housing
£

Supported
housing

Memorandum information:
Rent foregone due to
properties being vacant
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Income
Rent receivable
Service charge income
Amortisation of social housing and
other government grants
WG Revenue grant HFG2
PAG grants
Turnover from social housing
lettings
Operating costs
Management costs
Service charge costs
Routine maintenance
Major repairs/planned
maintenance
Bad debts
Depreciation and impairment of
housing properties
Other
Operating costs on social
housing activities
Operating surplus on social
housing lettings

Association
2020 Total

Association
2019 Total

£

£

£

8,021,170

390,037

8,411,207

8,136,930

453,393

109,879

563,272

471,900

822,391

-

822,391

905,125

24,765

-

24,765

-

-

223,506

343,306

9,545,225

499,916

10,045,141

9,857,261

1,508,847

160,849

1,669,696

1,470,511

-

486,675

567,653

-

2,992,463

3,022,530

-

184,657

239,514

-

83,964

45,558

-

2,051,509

2,370,459

General
needs and
sheltered
housing
£

Supported
housing

223,506

486,675
2,992,463
184,657
83,964
2,051,509
358,145
7,666,260

-

358,145

334,926

160,849

7,827,109

8,051,151

1,878,965

339,067

2,218,032

1,806,110

64,470

-

64,470

69,482

Memorandum information:
Rent foregone due to properties
being vacant
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4. Loss on sale of housing properties
Group &
Association
2020
£
Sales proceeds: Housing properties
Costs of sales: Housing properties
Loss on sale of housing properties

5.

195,577

-

(219,562)

-

(23,985)

-

Interest and financing costs

Bank loans and overdrafts
Imputed interest from effective interest rate
calculation
Total interest payable

6.

2019
£

2020
£
1,044,542

Group
2019
£
1,084,404

Association
2020
2019
£
£
1,044,542 1,084,404

22,121

35,286

22,121

35,286

1,066,663

1,119,690

1,066,663

1,119,690

2020
£

Group
2019
£

Interest receivable

Bank interest receivable

-

2020
£
-

Association
2019
£
-
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7.

Operating surplus

Surplus on ordinary activities is stated after charging:
2020
£

Group
2019
£

2020
£

Association
2019
£

Depreciation
-

Housing Properties

1,986,245

2,274,367

1,986,245

2,274,367

-

Other

122,298

116,446

105,124

92,968

Impairment

65,264

96,092

65,264

96,092

Bad debts

83,964

45,558

83,964

45,558

Auditors’ remuneration
-

In their capacity as auditors

19,644

18,225

17,074

15,655

-

In respect of other services

4,738

5,138

3,624

3,650

Operating lease rentals

8.

-

Land and buildings

12,910

11,293

9,769

9,732

-

Other assets

37,980

40,052

18,398

19,933

Directors and employees

(a) Directors’ emoluments
The directors are defined as members of the Board of Management and the Senior
Executives as listed on page 3. None of the members of the Board of Management
received any remuneration during the year or the previous year. Expenses reimbursed
to Board of management during the year totalled £935 (2019: £1,280)
The remuneration of the Senior Executives (including compensation for loss of office)
was as follows:
Group & Association
2020

2019

£

£

Aggregate emoluments of executive officers

237,362

235,012

Emoluments of highest paid director (and
highest paid employee), excluding pension
contributions

72,892

87,052
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8.

Directors and employees – (continued)

Retirement benefits are accruing under defined benefit schemes. The Chief Executive
is an ordinary member of a defined benefit pension scheme. No enhanced or special
terms apply and the Association makes no contribution to any individual pension
arrangement.
The full time equivalent number of key management personnel (including the Chief
Executive) whose remuneration payable in the period fell within the following bands
was:
Group & Association
2020

2019

Number

Number

£50,000 - £59,999

-

-

£60,000 – £69,999

-

-

£70,000 – £79,999

2

2

£80,000 – £89,999

1

-

£90,000 – £99,999

-

1
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(b) Employee information
The average number of staff (including executive officers) employed during the year
was:
Group

Actual
Full time equivalent

Association

2020
Staff
75
72

2019
Staff
76
71

2020
Staff
53
52

2019
Staff
56
54

2020
£

2019
£

2020
£

2019
£

Staff costs
Wages and salaries

2,410,798

2,167,366

1,816,598

1,671,149

Social security costs

218,818

217,479

164,365

167,984

Other pension costs

210,192

155,897

174,848

127,026

2,839,808

2,540,742

2,155,811

1,966,159

Total staff costs
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9. Intangible Fixed Assets
Group
£

Association
£

Cost or valuation
At 1 April 2019
Additions
Disposals

228,537
39,435
-

217,850
39,435
-

At 31 March 2020

267,972

257,285

152,124
23,361
175,485

141,437
23,361
164,798

At 31 March 2020

92,487

92,487

At 31 March 2019

76,413

76,413

Amortisation
At 1 April 2019
Charge for the year
Disposals
At 31 March 2020
Net book value
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10. Tangible fixed assets – Housing properties
Group & Association
Social
Housing
properties
£

Properties
under
construction
£

Shared
ownership

Total

£

£

Cost or valuation
At 1 April 2019
Additions
Schemes completed
Components capitalised
Disposals
Transfer to current assets

117,288,607
2,427,975
1,296,048
(1,061,241)
(194,887)

4,210,898
3,610,680
(2,427,975)
-

186,845
-

121,686,350
3,610,680
1,296,048
(1,061,241)
(194,887)

At 31 March 2020

119,756,502

5,393,603

186,845

125,336,950

Depreciation
At 1 April 2019
Charge for the year
Impairment losses
Eliminated on disposals
Transfer to current assets

24,795,361
1,984,990
(55,495)
(869,902)
(65,752)

19,441
120,759
-

49,471
1,255
-

24,864,273
1,986,245
65,264
(869,902)
(65,752)

At 31 March 2020

25,789,202

140,200

50,726

25,980,128

93,967,300

5,253,403

136,119

99,356,822

92,493,246

4,191,457

137,374

96,822,077

Net book value
At 31 March 2020
At 31 March 2019

2020

2019

£

£

96,008,894

93,341,493

Long leasehold land and buildings

2,458,579

2,589,772

Short leasehold land and buildings

889,349

890,812

99,356,822

96,822,077

Housing properties comprise:
Freehold land and buildings

Total housing land and buildings
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11. Other tangible fixed assets
Group
Freehold
offices
£

Leasehold
Property
£

Motor
vehicles
£

Computer
equipment
£

Office
furniture &
equipment
£

Total
£

Cost or
valuation
At 1 April 2019
Additions
Disposals

1,420,418
-

33,723
-

21,305
-

103,576
128,535
-

959,880
228,084
(29,914)

2,517,597
377,924
(29,914)

At 31 March
2020

1,420,418

33,723

21,305

232,111

1,158,050

2,865,607

At 1 April 2019
Charge for the
year
Disposals

257,275

33,723

-

85,045

547,225

923,268

23,381

-

4,882

15,306

55,368

98,937

-

-

-

-

(13,475)

(13,475)

At 31 March
2020

280,656

33,723

4,882

100,351

589,118

1,008,730

At 31 March
2020

1,139,762

-

At 31 March
2019

1,163,143

-

Depreciation

Net book value

16,423

131,760

-

18,531

568,932

412,655

1,856,877

1,594,329
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11. Other tangible fixed assets – continued.

Association
Freehold
offices
£

Computer
equipment
£

Office furniture
& equipment
£

Total
£

Cost or valuation
At 1 April 2019
Additions
Disposals
At 31 March 2020

1,095,050
1,095,050

43,632
128,535
172,167

910,951
228,084
(29,914)
1,109,121

2,049,633
356,619
(29,914)
2,376,338

199,813
17,158
216,971

34,306
11,124
45,430

503,262
53,481
(13,475)
543,268

737,381
81,763
(13,475)
805,669

At 31 March 2020

878,079

126,737

565,853

1,570,669

At 31 March 2019

895,237

9,326

407,689

1,312,252

Depreciation
At 1 April 2019
Charge for the year
Disposals
At 31 March 2020
Net book value

12. Fixed asset investments – HomeBuy loans receivable
Group & Association
2020
2019
£
£
At 1 April

432,720

452,220

Additions

-

-

(28,000)

(19,500)

404,720

432,720

Disposals
At 31 March

The investment grants include the funding received from the Welsh Government for
the Homebuy loans. These loans are stated at cost in accordance with Housing SORP
2018.
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13. Stocks
Group
2019
£

2020
£
Raw materials and consumables

Association
2020
2019
£
£

43,166

39,668

6,371

7,200

2020
£
329,854

Group
2019
£
589,784

(242,965)

(216,067)

(242,965)

(216,067)

86,889

373,717

86,889

373,717

Other debtors

623,258

579,500

623,258

579,500

Prepayments and accrued income

292,723

322,438

237,510

305,363

-

-

79,247

2,515

1,002,870

1,275,655

1,026,904

1,261,095

14. Debtors

Arrears of rent and service charges:
Less: provision for bad and doubtful debts

Amounts due to Group undertakings

Association
2020
2019
£
£
329,854
589,784

15. Housing Properties for sale
Group & Association
2020
2019
£
£
269,293
74,406

Cost
Less accumulated depreciation

(86,175)

(20,423)

Net Book Value

183,118

53,983

16. Debtors – amounts falling due after more than one year

Other debtors

2020
£
656,327
656,327

Group
2019
£
-

Association
2020
2019
£
£
656,327
-

-

656,327

-
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17. Creditors – amounts falling due within one year
2020
£

Group
2019
£

2020
£

Association
2019
£

Housing loans (note 19)
WG Interest free loan
Social Housing Grant in advance
Recycled capital grant fund (note 20)
Pension provision (note 23)
Contractors for certified work and
retentions unpaid
Accruals and deferred income

2,558,224
1,253,006
1,730
532,732

8,462,366
216,558
87,691
555,578
1,679
639,135

2,558,224
1,253,006
1,730
532,732

8,462,366
216,558
87,691
555,578
1,679
639,135

958,172

1,095,511

827,266

910,230

Amounts due to Group undertakings

5,303,864

11,058,518

10,450
5,183,408

1,174
10,874,411

Housing loans are shown net of capitalised loan fees of £25,218 (2019: £16,300)

18. Creditors – amounts falling due after more than one year
2020
£
Other creditors
Recycled capital grant fund (note 20)
Deferred Income
Housing loans (note 19)
Welsh Government Loans
Pension provision (note 23)

17,130
26,906,139
650,000
6,612
27,579,881

Group
2019
£

63,819
7,931
20,346,703
180,000
8,441
20,606,894

2020
£

26,906,139
650,000
6,612
27,562,751

Association
2019
£

63,819
20,346,703
180,000
8,441
20,598,963

Housing loans are shown net of capitalised loan fees of £373,313 (2019: £262,550)
Housing loans are secured by specific charges over the Association’s housing properties and are
repayable by instalments. Interest rates are fixed at between 3.81% and 12.725% or vary with the
market.
The Welsh Government loans relate to the Land for Housing scheme which repayable on the earliest
of the issue of a certificate of practical completion in respect of the last unit in the housing development
and the fifth anniversary of the purchase of the land. Interest is only payable on this loan if the proposed
number of housing units are not developed.
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19. Housing Loans
The loans are repayable as follows:
Group & Association
2020

2019

£

£

2,558,224

8,462,366

Between one and two years

728,500

825,708

Between two and five years

3,409,505

2,320,387

In five years or more

22,768,134

17,200,608

In more than one year

26,906,139

20,346,703

Total Housing loans

29,464,363

28,809,069

Amounts falling due:
Within one year or less

20. Recycled Capital Grant
The movement on the recycled capital grant fund was as shown below:
Group & Association
2020
2019
£
£
At 1 April
Grants receivable
Grants recycled

619,397
118,985
(738,382)

1,140,538
(521,141)

-

619,397

Amounts falling due within one year
Amounts falling due after more than one year

-

555,578
63,819

At 31 March

-

619,397

At 31 March

The grant is repayable as follows:
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21. Social housing and other government grants

Group & Association
Social
Housing
properties
£
Gross grant
creditor
At 1 April 2019
Schemes
completed
Grant receivable
Housing property
disposals

Properties
under
construction
£

Shared
ownership

Investment
grants

Total

£

£

£

65,281,842

2,352,391

29,510

372,720

68,036,463

497,944

(497,944)

-

-

-

502,056

1,468,776

-

-

1,970,832

(160,523)

-

-

(28,000)

(188,523)

At 31 March 2020

66,121,319

3,323,223

29,510

344,720

69,818,772

Amortisation
At 1 April 2019

20,275,594

-

10,261

-

20,285,855

513

-

822,391

821,878

Credit for the year
Housing property
Disposals

(53,802)

-

-

-

(53,802)

At 31 March 2020

21,043,670

-

10,774

-

21,054,444

At 31 March 2020

45,077,649

3,323,223

18,736

344,720

48,764,328

At 31 March 2019

45,006,248

2,352,391

19,249

372,720

47,750,608

Net grant creditor

Included within social housing properties grants are £4,480,741 (2019: £3,989,006) of non-repayable
grants that are being amortised over the life of the relevant assets.

2020
£

2019
£

Amounts falling due within one year
Amounts falling due after more than one year

790,236
47,974,092

831,287
46,919,321

At 31 March

48,764,328

47,750,608

The grant is analysed as follows:
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The grants are amortised as follows:
Group & Association
2020

2019

£

£

790,236

831,287

Between one and two years

689,981

789,131

Between two and five years

1,859,806

1,998,393

41,756,362

41,406,686

Amounts falling due:
Within one year or less

In five years or more
Properties under construction grant

2,352,391

Investment grants

3,323,223
344,720

In more than one year

47,974,092

46,919,321

Total grant creditor

48,764,328

47,750,608

372,720

Social Housing Property and Shared ownership grant is amortised as per Group policy (See Note 2).
Investment grants are not amortised. Amortisation of grant associated with properties under
construction will commence when substantially all the activities that are necessary to get the asset
ready for use are complete.

22. Investment grants
Group & Association
2020

2019

£

£

372,720

392,220

Additions

-

-

Disposals

(28,000)

(19,500)

At 31 March

344,720

372,720

At 1 April

The investment grant is funding received from the Welsh Government to fully fund the Homebuy and
Homestep scheme, the assets of which are shown as a fixed asset investment (Note 12). All amounts
are due in more than one year.
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23. Pension provision
Group
2019
£

2020
£

2020
£

Association
2019
£

At 1 April

10,120

12,860

10,120

12,860

Paid during the year

(1,679)

(1,657)

(1,679)

(1,657)

127

206

127

206

Pension deficit re-measurements

(226)

(1,289)

(226)

(1,289)

At 31 March

8,342

10,120

8,342

10,120

Finance charge in the year

The pension deficit provision relates to the Growth plan scheme and is payable by instalments as
follows:

Group
2019
£

2020
£
Amounts falling due:
Within one year or less

Association
2019
£

2020
£

1,730

1,679

1,730

1,679

Between one and two years

1,782

1,730

1,782

1,730

Between two and five years

4,830

5,089

4,830

5,089

In five years or more

-

1,622

-

1,622

In more than one year

6,612

8,441

6,612

8,441

Total pension provision

8,342

10,120

8,342

10,120

SCHEME: TPT Retirement Solutions – The Growth Plan
The Association participates in the scheme, a multi-employer scheme which provides
benefits to some 950 non-associated participating employers. The scheme is a defined
benefit scheme in the UK. It is not possible for the Association to obtain sufficient
information to enable it to account for the scheme as a defined benefit scheme.
Therefore, it accounts for the scheme as a defined contribution scheme.
The scheme is subject to the funding legislation outlined in the Pensions Act 2004
which came into force on 30 December 2005. This, together with documents issued
by the Pensions Regulator and Technical Actuarial Standards issued by the Financial
Reporting Council, set out the framework for funding defined benefit occupational
pension schemes in the UK.
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The scheme is classified as a 'last-man standing arrangement'. Therefore the
Association is potentially liable for other participating employers' obligations if those
employers are unable to meet their share of the scheme deficit following withdrawal
from the scheme. Participating employers are legally required to meet their share of
the scheme deficit on an annuity purchase basis on withdrawal from the scheme.
A full actuarial valuation for the scheme was carried out at 30 September 2017. This
valuation showed assets of £794.9m, liabilities of £926.4m and a deficit of £131.5m.
To eliminate this funding shortfall, the Trustee has asked the participating employers
to pay additional contributions to the scheme as follows:
Deficit contributions
From 1 April 2019 to 31 January 2025:

£11,243,000 per annum
(payable monthly and increasing by 3% each on 1st April)

Unless a concession has been agreed with the Trustee the term to 31 January 2025
applies.
Note that the scheme’s previous valuation was carried out with an effective date of 30
September 2014. This valuation showed assets of £793.4m, liabilities of £969.9m and
a deficit of £176.5m. To eliminate this funding shortfall, the Trustee has asked the
participating employers to pay additional contributions to the scheme as follows:
Deficit contributions
From 1 April 2016 to 30 September 2025:

£12,945,440 per annum
(payable monthly and increasing by 3% each on 1st April)

From 1 April 2016 to 30 September 2028:

£54,560 per annum
(payable monthly and increasing by 3% each on 1st April)

The recovery plan contributions are allocated to each participating employer in line
with their estimated share of the Series 1 and Series 2 scheme liabilities.
Where the scheme is in deficit and where the company has agreed to a deficit funding
arrangement the company recognises a liability for this obligation. The amount
recognised is the net present value of the deficit reduction contributions payable under
the agreement that relates to the deficit. The present value is calculated using the
discount rate detailed in these disclosures. The unwinding of the discount rate is
recognised as a finance cost.
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23. Pension provision (Continued)
Present value of provision

31 March 2020
(£s)

31 March 2019
(£s)

31 March 2018
(£s)

8,342

10,120

12,860

Period Ending
31 March 2020
(£s)

Period Ending
31 March 2019
(£s)

10,120

12,860

127

206

(1,679)

(1,657)

(226)

92

-

(1,381)

8,342

10,120

Period Ending
31 March 2020
(£s

Period Ending
31 March 2019
(£s)

127

206

(226)

92

-

(1,381)

Present value of provision
Reconciliation of opening and closing provisions

Provision at start of period
Unwinding of the discount factor (interest expense)
Deficit contribution paid
Remeasurements - impact of any change in assumptions
Remeasurements - amendments to the contribution schedule
Provision at end of period

Income and expenditure impact

Interest expense
Remeasurements – impact of any change in assumptions
Remeasurements – amendments to the contribution schedule
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23. Pension provision (Continued)
Assumptions

Rate of discount

31 March 2020
% per annum

31 March 2019
% per annum

31 March 2018
% per annum

2.53

1.39

1.71

The discount rates shown above are the equivalent single discount rates which, when
used to discount the future recovery plan contributions due, would give the same
results as using a full AA corporate bond yield curve to discount the same recovery
plan contributions.
24. Pension - Defined Benefit Liability
The Association and its subsidiary participate in the Social Housing Pension Scheme
(the Scheme), a multi-employer scheme which provides benefits to some 500 nonassociated employers. The Scheme is a defined benefit scheme in the UK.
The Scheme is subject to the funding legislation outlined in the Pensions Act 2004
which came into force on 30 December 2005. This, together with documents issued
by the Pensions Regulator and Technical Actuarial Standards issued by the Financial
Reporting Council, set out the framework for funding defined benefit occupational
pension schemes in the UK.
The last triennial valuation of the scheme for funding purposes was carried out as at
30 September 2017. This valuation revealed a deficit of £1,522m. A Recovery Plan
has been put in place with the aim of removing this deficit by 30 September 2026.
The Scheme is classified as a 'last-man standing arrangement'. Therefore, the
Association and its subsidiary are potentially liable for other participating employers'
obligations if those employers are unable to meet their share of the scheme deficit
following withdrawal from the Scheme. Participating employers are legally required to
meet their share of the Scheme deficit on an annuity purchase basis on withdrawal
from the Scheme.
For financial years ending on or before 28 February 2019, it has not been possible for
the Association and its subsidiary to obtain sufficient information to enable it to account
for the Scheme as a defined benefit scheme, therefore they accounted for the Scheme
as a defined contribution scheme.
For financial years ending on or after 31 March 2019, it is possible to obtain sufficient
information to enable the Association and subsidiary to account for the Scheme as a
defined benefit scheme.
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24. Pension - Defined Benefit Liability (continued)
For accounting purposes, a valuation of the scheme was carried out with an effective
date of 30 September 2018. The liability figures from this valuation were rolled forward
for accounting year-ends from 31 March 2019 to 29 February 2020 inclusive. The
liabilities are compared, at the relevant accounting date, with the Association and
subsidiary’s fair share of the Scheme’s total assets to calculate the Association and
subsidiary’s net deficit or surplus.
Similarly, an actuarial valuation of the scheme was carried out as at 30 September
2019 to inform the liabilities for accounting year ends from 31 March 2020 to 28
February 2021.
Net Defined Benefit Liability - Cynon Taf Community Housing (2007) LTD
2020
£
At 1 April
Employer deficit contribution in year to DB scheme
Deficit recognised in Statement of Cash flows
Interest expense
Additional pension service costs/expenses
Additional amounts recognised in Operating costs
Actuarial gains/(losses) in respect of pension scheme
Total amount recognised in Other Comprehensive
income
Net Defined benefit liability at 31 March

2019
£

(3,893,000)
347,519
347,519
(88,000)
(83,519)
(171,519)
2,096,000
2,096,000

(3,208,000)
275,398
275,398
(81,000)
(119,398)
(200,398)
(760,000)
(760,000)

(1,621,000)

(3,893,000)

FAIR VALUE OF PLAN ASSETS, PRESENT VALUE OF DEFINED BENEFIT
OBLIGATION, AND DEFINED BENEFIT ASSET (LIABILITY)

31 March 2020

31 March 2019

(£000s)

(£000s)

Fair value of plan assets

11,417

10,800

Present value of defined benefit obligation

13,038

14,693

Surplus (deficit) in plan

(1,621)

(3,893)

-

-

(1,621)

(3,893)

Unrecognised surplus
Defined benefit asset (liability) to be recognised
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RECONCILIATION OF OPENING AND CLOSING BALANCES OF THE
DEFINED BENEFIT OBLIGATION
Period from
31 March 2019 to
31 March 2020
(£000s)

Defined benefit obligation at start of period

14,693

Current service cost

250

Expenses

10

Interest expense

343

Member contributions

99

Actuarial losses (gains) due to scheme experience

(31)

Actuarial losses (gains) due to changes in demographic assumptions
Actuarial losses (gains) due to changes in financial assumptions

(128)
(1,813)

Benefits paid and expenses
Defined benefit obligation at end of period

(385)
13,038

RECONCILIATION OF OPENING AND CLOSING BALANCES OF THE FAIR
VALUE OF PLAN ASSETS
Period from
31 March 2019 to
31 March 2020
(£000s)

Fair value of plan assets at start of period

10,800

Interest income

255

Experience on plan assets (excluding amounts included in interest income) - gain
(loss)

124

Employer contributions

524

Member contributions
Benefits paid and expenses
Fair value of plan assets at end of period

99
(385)
11,417

The actual return on plan assets (including any changes in share of assets) over the period from 31 March
2019 to 31 March 2020 was £379,000.
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DEFINED BENEFIT COSTS RECOGNISED IN STATEMENT OF
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (SOCI)
Period from
31 March 2019 to
31 March 2020
(£000s)

Current service cost

250

Expenses

10

Net interest expense

88

Defined benefit costs recognised in Statement of Comprehensive Income
(SoCI)

348

DEFINED BENEFIT COSTS RECOGNISED IN OTHER COMPREHENSIVE
INCOME (OCI)
Period from
31 March 2019 to
31 March 2020
(£000s)

Experience on plan assets (excluding amounts included in net interest cost) - gain
(loss)
Experience gains and losses arising on the plan liabilities - gain (loss)

Effects of changes in the demographic assumptions underlying the present value
of the defined benefit obligation - gain (loss)

124

31

128

Effects of changes in the financial assumptions underlying the present value of
the defined benefit obligation - gain (loss)

1,813

Total actuarial gains and losses (before restriction due to some of the surplus not
being recognisable) - gain (loss)

2,096

Total amount recognised in Other Comprehensive Income - gain (loss)

2,096
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ASSETS

Global Equity
Absolute Return
Distressed Opportunities
Credit Relative Value
Alternative Risk Premia
Fund of Hedge Funds
Emerging Markets Debt
Risk Sharing
Insurance-Linked Securities
Property
Infrastructure
Private Debt
Opportunistic Illiquid Credit
Corporate Bond Fund
Liquid Credit
Long Lease Property
Secured Income
Over 15 Year Gilts
Index Linked All Stock Gilts
Liability Driven Investment
Net Current Assets
Total assets

31 March 2020

31 March 2019

(£000s)

(£000s)

1,670

1,817

595

934

220

196

313

198

798

623

7

49

346

373

386

326

351

310

251

243

850

566

230

145

276

-

651

504

5

-

197

159

433

387

-

-

-

-

3,789

3,949

49

21

11,417

10,800

None of the fair values of the assets shown above include any direct investments in the employer’s
own financial instruments or any property occupied by, or other assets used by, the employer.
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KEY ASSUMPTIONS
31 March 2020
% per annum

31 March 2019
% per annum

Discount Rate

2.36%

2.33%

Inflation (RPI)
Inflation (CPI)
Salary Growth

2.58%
1.58%
2.58%
75% of
maximum
allowance

3.28%
2.28%
3.28%
75% of
maximum
allowance

Allowance for commutation of pension for
cash at retirement

The mortality assumptions adopted at 31 March 2020 imply the following life
expectancies:
Life expectancy
at age 65
(Years)
Male retiring in 2020
Female retiring in 2020
Male retiring in 2040
Female retiring in 2040

21.5
23.3
22.9
24.5
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24. Pension - Defined Benefit Liability (continued)
Net Defined Benefit Liability – Cwm Taf Care and Repair Limited

At 1 April

2020

2019

£

£

(549,355)

(488,000)

44,995

32,645

3,000

3,000

47,995

35,645

(13,000)

(12,000)

(3,000)

(3,000)

Total amount recognised in Operating costs

(16,000)

(15,000)

Actuarial gains/(losses) in respect of pension
scheme

269,000

(82,000)

269,000

(82,000)

(248,360)

(549,355)

Employer contribution in year to DB scheme
Employer expenses in operating costs
Total amount recognised in Statement of Cash
flows
Interest expense
Pension admin expenses

Total amount recognised in Other
Comprehensive income
Net Defined benefit liability at 31 March

FAIR VALUE OF PLAN ASSETS, PRESENT VALUE OF DEFINED BENEFIT
OBLIGATION, AND DEFINED BENEFIT ASSET (LIABILITY)
31 March 2020

31 March 2019

(£000s)

(£000s)

Fair value of plan assets

1,442

1,427

Present value of defined benefit
obligation

1,690

1,976

Surplus (deficit) in plan

(248)

(549)

Defined benefit asset (liability) to be
recognised

(248)

(549)
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RECONCILIATION OF OPENING AND CLOSING BALANCES OF THE
DEFINED BENEFIT OBLIGATION

Period from
31 March 2019 to
31 March 2020
(£000s)
Defined benefit obligation at start of
period

1,976

Current service cost

-

Expenses

3

Interest expense
Member contributions

47
-

Actuarial losses (gains) due to scheme
experience

(55)

Actuarial losses (gains) due to changes in demographic
assumptions

(16)

Actuarial losses (gains) due to changes in financial
assumptions
Benefits paid and expenses
Defined benefit obligation at end of
period

(254)
(11)
1,690
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RECONCILIATION OF OPENING AND CLOSING BALANCES OF THE FAIR
VALUE OF PLAN ASSETS
Period from
31 March 2019 to
31 March 2020
(£000s)
Fair value of plan assets at start of
period

1,427

Interest income

34

Experience on plan assets (excluding amounts included in
interest income) - gain (loss)

(56)

Employer contributions

48

Member contributions

-

Benefits paid and expenses

(11)

Fair value of plan assets at end of
period

1,442

The actual return on plan assets (including any changes in share of assets) over
the period from 31 March 2019 to 31 March 2020 was (£22,000).
DEFINED BENEFIT COSTS RECOGNISED IN STATEMENT OF
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (SOCI)
Period from
31 March 2019 to
31 March 2020
(£000s)
Current service cost

-

Expenses

3

Net interest expense

13

Defined benefit costs recognised in Statement of
Comprehensive Income (SoCI)

16
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DEFINED BENEFIT COSTS RECOGNISED IN OTHER COMPREHENSIVE
INCOME (OCI)
Period from
31 March 2019 to
31 March 2020
(£000s)
Experience on plan assets (excluding amounts included in
net interest cost) - gain (loss)

(56)

Experience gains and losses arising on the plan liabilities gain (loss)

55

Effects of changes in the demographic assumptions
underlying the present value of the defined benefit obligation
- gain (loss)

16

Effects of changes in the financial assumptions underlying
the present value of the defined benefit obligation - gain
(loss)

254

Total actuarial gains and losses (before restriction due to
some of the surplus not being recognisable) - gain (loss)

269

Total amount recognised in Other Comprehensive
Income - gain (loss)

269
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ASSETS

31 March 2020

31 March 2019

(£000s)

(£000s)

211

240

Absolute Return

75

124

Distressed Opportunities

28

26

Credit Relative Value

39

26

101

82

1

6

Emerging Markets Debt

44

49

Risk Sharing

49

43

Insurance-Linked Securities

44

41

Property

32

32

Infrastructure

107

75

Private Debt

29

19

Opportunistic Illiquid Credit

35

-

Corporate Bond Fund

82

67

1

-

Long Lease Property

25

21

Secured Income

55

51

Over 15 Year Gilts

-

-

Index Linked All Stock Gilts

-

-

478

522

6

3

1,442

1,427

Global Equity

Alternative Risk Premia
Fund of Hedge Funds

Liquid Credit

Liability Driven Investment
Net Current Assets
Total assets

None of the fair values of the assets shown above include any direct investments
in the employer’s own financial instruments or any property occupied by, or other
assets used by, the employer.
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KEY ASSUMPTIONS
31 March 2020

31 March 2019

% per annum

% per annum

Discount Rate

2.35%

2.36%

Inflation (RPI)

2.55%

3.24%

Inflation (CPI)

1.55%

2.24%

Salary Growth

2.55%

3.24%

75% of maximum
allowance

75% of maximum
allowance

Allowance for commutation of pension
for cash at retirement

The mortality assumptions adopted at 31 March 2020 imply the following life
expectancies:
Life expectancy at
age 65
(Years)
Male retiring in 2020

21.5

Female retiring in 2020

23.3

Male retiring in 2040

22.9

Female retiring in 2040

24.5
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25. Share capital
Group & Association
2020
2019
£
£
At beginning of year

148

144

1

11

Cancelled during the year

(10)

(7)

At end of year

139

148

Issued during the year

The shares provide members with the right to vote at general meetings but do not
have a right to any dividend or distribution in a winding-up and are not redeemable.
26. Reserves
Group

At 1 April 2019

Revenue
reserve
£
17,792,622

Restricted
reserve
£
43,633

Designated
reserve
£
596,432

Total
£
18,432,687

Transfer from revenue reserve
Transfer from designated reserve
Transfer to designated reserve
Transfer to revenue reserve
Transfer from restricted reserve
Surplus for the year
At 31 March 2020

23,010
(56,659)
852
3,572,292
21,332,117

(852)
42,781

56,659
(23,010)
630,081

56,659
23,010
(56,659)
(23,862)
852
3,572,292
22,004,979

Association

At 1 April 2019
Transfer from revenue reserve
Transfer to designated reserve
Surplus for the year
At 31 March 2020

Revenue
reserve
£
17,738,579
(7,303)
3,249,846
20,981,122

Designated
reserve
£
439,993
7,303
447,296

Total
£
18,178,572
7,303
(7,303)
3,249,846
21,428,418
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27. Financial commitments
Capital commitments are as follows:
Group & Association
2020
2019
£
£
Contracted for but not provided for in the financial statements

5,137,594

Authorised but not contracted for

945,488

2,630,674
759,860

The commitments will be funded from Social Housing Grant and private finance.

28. Operating leases
Annual commitments under operating leases as follows:

Land & Buildings
Group
2019
£

2020
£
Within one year

Association
2020
2019
£
£

13,600

9,704

9,759

9,703

Between one and two years

9,760

9,704

9,759

9,703

Between two and five years

8,281

15,113

8,278

15,110

477,193

478,458

477,177

478,439

508,834

512,979

504,973

512,955

After more than five years

Other
Group
2019
£

2020
£

Association
2020
2019
£
£

Within one year

18,010

29,685

7,781

17,060

Between one and two years

11,874

14,240

3,973

6,677

Between two and five years

5,868

14,392

4,756

8,729

-

-

-

-

35,752

58,317

16,510

32,466

After more than five years
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29. Units in management
Group & Association
Opening units
at

Sales

Transfers

New Build

1 April 2019
General
needs

Closing units
at
31 March 2020

1779

(4)

19

1

1795

Supported
Housing

62

-

-

-

62

Shared
ownership

23

(1)

-

-

22

Under
development

42

-

(19)

29

52

1906

(5)

-

30

1931

30. Related party transactions
Four Board members were tenants of the Association during the year. Their tenancy
agreements are under normal commercial terms and they are not able to use their
position to their advantage.
At the year end, there were no amounts outstanding to the Association (2019: £503)
and rental income of £20,242 was received in the year (2019: £18,204).

31. Controlling party
Cynon Taf Community Housing (2007) Limited is legally owned by its shareholders,
but they are restricted and have no personal beneficial interest in the assets of the
Association. The ultimate controlling party is considered to be the Board of directors.
Cynon Taf Community Housing (2007) Limited is the parent of the group for which the
results are consolidated. Individual accounts for its subsidiary Cwm Taf Care and
Repair Limited are available on request from the registered address of the Association.
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32. Subsidiary Undertakings
At 31 March 2020 the Association had a controlling interest in the affairs of Cwm Taf
Care & Repair Limited (The “Agency”). This was by virtue of the fact that the
Association may appoint a majority of the organisation’s Board of Management.
Cwm Taf Care & Repair Limited is not a registered social landlord. Its principal activity
is to help older and disabled people improve and maintain a suitable home
environment by enabling repairs, improvements and adaptations to be carried out.
During the year the Agency generated turnover of £1,563,388 (2019: £1,465,213) of
which £10,000 was a donation from the Association (2019: £10,000). The Association
charged the Agency £40,048 for management costs during the year (2019: £40,660).
These are classed as intercompany costs that are eliminated on consolidation of the
accounts.
In addition, the Agency incurred £73,060 in direct overhead costs apportioned and
recharged by the Association (2019: £25,503). The Association incurred £7,242
(2019: £28,804) for recharges of other income and costs by the Agency.
There was a balance receivable by the Association of £79,247 and due from the
Association to the Agency of £10,450 at the year end. These are eliminated on
consolidation.
33. Contingent Liabilities
The Association and Cwm Taf Care and Repair Limited have both been notified by the
Pensions Trusts of their estimated employer debts on withdrawal from the Pension
Plan, based on the financial position of the scheme as at 30 September 2019. As of
this date, the employer debt for the Association was £13,470,693 and £1,897,906 for
Cwm Taf Care & Repair Limited. Neither the Association or Cwm Taf Care & Repair
Limited currently have any intention of withdrawing from the Plan.
Social housing grant received for a housing property is potentially repayable on its
disposal, including any amounts credited to income and expenditure account in
respect of amortised grant. The total amount of social housing grant written back to
income and expenditure account and potentially repayable is £20,501,242 (2019:
£19,796,091).
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